
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Wednesday, 20 March 2024 

 

Tel: 01993 861000 

e-mail: democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB on Tuesday, 2 

April 2024 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 
To: Members of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Michael Brooker (Chair), Andy Goodwin (Vice-Chair), Julian Cooper, Rachel Crouch, 

Colin Dingwall, Phil Godfrey, Nick Leverton, Dan Levy, Andrew Lyon, Lysette 

Nicholls, Andrew Prosser, Harry St John, Adrian Walsh and Alistair Wray 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on Monday 4 March 2024. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence  

To receive any apologies for absence.  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting. 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 13 - 42) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 
That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 

Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

Page  Application 

No. 

Address Planning 

Officer 

15-18 23/02825/HHD Laurel Cottage, Foxburrow 

Lane, Crawley. 

Clare 

Anscombe 

19-31 23/0311/FUL Plot 4, Viscount Industrial 

Estate, Brize Norton. 

Joan 

Desmond 

32-37 24/00175/HHD Olde Well Cottage, 109 

Station, Brize Norton. 

Elloise Street 

38-41 24/00285/LBC Olde Well Cottage, 109 

Station, Brize Norton. 

Elloise Street 

 

 

4.1   23/02825/FUL Laurel Cottage, Foxburrow Lane, Crawley. 

 

 

4.2   23/03111/FUL Plot 4, Viscount Industrial Estate, Brize Norton. 

 

 

4.3   24/00175/HHD Olde Well Cottage, 109 Station Lane, Brize Norton 

 

 

4.4   24/00285/LBC  Olde Well Cottage, 109 Station Lane, Brize Norton 

 

 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers. (Pages 43 - 54) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the report be noted. 

 
 

Page 2



 

 

6.   Appeal Decisions (Pages 55 - 56) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the report be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB 

at 2.00 pm on Monday, 4 March 2024 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Michael Brooker (Chair), Andy Goodwin (Vice-Chair), Julian Cooper, Rachel 

Crouch, Phil Godfrey, Nick Leverton, Dan Levy, Andrew Lyon, Michele Mead,Lysette Nicholls, 

Andrew Prosser, Alaric Smith, Harry St John and Adrian Walsh. 

Officers:  Phil Shaw (Development & Sustainability Business Manager), Abby Fettes (Interim 

Development Manager), Clare Anscombe (Senior Planner), Esther Hill (Planner), and Elloise 

Street (Planner),Andrew Brown (Democratic Services Business Manager) and Anne Learmonth 

(Strategic Support Officer). 

Other Councillors in attendance:  Nil. 

69 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alistair Wray and Colin Dingwall. 

Councillor Alaric Smith substituted for Councillor Alistair Wray.  

Councillor Michele Mead substituted for Councillor Colin Dingwall 

70 Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest received. 

71 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2024 were approved and signed by the 

Chairman as a correct record. 

Councillor Adrian Walsh proposed that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 5 

February 2024 be agreed by the Sub-Committee as a true and accurate record and be signed 

by the Chair.  

This was seconded by Councillor Andrew Prosser was put to the vote and was agreed by the 

Sub-Committee. There were 13 votes in favour and 1 abstention. The vote was carried. 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

Agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 5 February 2024 as a true and 

accurate record.  

72 Applications for Development  

73 23/02849/FUL Land South of West Chapel Lane, Standlake.  

Esther Hill, Planning Officer, introduced the application for the erection of a dwelling with 

double garage, adapted vehicular entrance point and related landscaping.  

Jenny McDonald, spokesperson for Standlake Parish Council addressed the Sub-Committee in 

objection to the application.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

04/March2024 

 

 

Paula Gaffney and John Spencer addressed the Sub-Committee and spoke in objection to the 

application. The speakers provided clarification on the frequency of surrounding houses having 

to deal with flooding and drainage problems.   

Neil Perry, Agent for the applicant addressed the Sub-Committee in support of the application 

and stated the borehole within the neighbouring property was 130mm lower at the boundary 

than the borehole within the application site.   

The Planning Officer drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the following points; 

 The application had been deferred at the January  Lowlands Planning Sub-Committee 

for a site visit, for additional comments to be provided by Oxfordshire County Council 

(OCC) Highways, the WODC Drainage Officer and for public re-consultation. 

 Safety concerns had been raised by both Members of the Sub-Committee and 

members of the public, regarding the access to Chapel Lane for both car users and 

pedestrians. After observing the use of the lane by car users, pedestrians and cycle 

users, OCC Highways had found the access substandard.  

 The loss of agricultural land, the single dwelling proposed, and the implementation of a 

Wild-Flower Meadow would not result in increased use of the lane access and 

therefore no objection had been raised by OCC Highways and it would therefore be 

unreasonable to request improvements to access as part of this application.  

 The site fell under Flood Zone 1, however a significant number of objectors had 

highlighted that Standlake experiences ground water flooding.  

 Two additional ground water monitoring reports had been submitted by the applicant 

with measurements and photos. Third party representatives had dug 3 boreholes 

surrounding the application site and used ground water monitoring equipment to take 

measurements which had been included in the objections.  

 The Planning Officer and WODC Drainage Officer had conducted a site inspection on 

19th February. The Planning Officers found inconsistencies in the levels of ground water 

data supplied by the applicant. Officers had taken a reading from the trial pit within the 

application site which fell below the minimum required for water treatment. The 

measurement taken from the borehole within the site was above the minimum 

required but officers had concerns over how the levels were being measured. Since the 

officer site visit the applicant had advised that the OS Datum Readings for the site had 

been reviewed and this put the top of pipe 30mm higher than they had estimated. In 

turn, this raised the highest recorded ground water level by 30mm. To achieve the 

300mm clearance needed the applicant had suggested increasing the dwelling and patio 

by 50mm. The Drainage Officer objected as the readings had not included the dates 

when high levels of rainfall had been experienced and were therefore concerned with 

the 50mm increase proposed.  

 The Planning Officers were concerned that it had not been demonstrated that the 

proposed development would not result in an unacceptable flood risk to the occupiers 

of the new dwelling or existing occupiers of dwellings in the area. The Planning Officers 

recommended refusal of the application.  

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points: 

Page 6



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

04/March2024 

 

 

 On the site visit Members had the opportunity to see the flooding currently affecting 

the street and the impact on the surrounding properties including the use of pumping 

equipment.  

 The Sub-Committee expressed concerns that the flooding was at the detriment of the 

residents and not enough data was available.  

 Clarification was given by the WODC Drainage Officer on the measurements and 

readings taken, the levels of water on 9 February 2024 and 18 February 2024 were 

when the area had experienced the highest rainfall according to data sent by the 

neighbour. The WODC Drainage Officer advised that if the dwelling was raised any 

further it could increase the water run off to surrounding properties.  

 The Sub-Committee asked for clarification on the dates 9 February 2024 and 18 

February 2024, where the data came from on those dates. The Planning Officer 

confirmed that the data from those dates had been taken from the neighbouring 

houses. The WODC Drainage Officer confirmed those readings to be 8mm and 4mm. 

The Sub-Committee stated that given the130mm difference between the borehole 

within the site and the borehole on the neighbouring property, on 9 February 2024 and 

18 February 2024 the water levels within the site would have been higher than the 

minimum 300mm clearance needed.  

 The Sub-Committee expressed that the development would add to the drainage and 

traffic problems within the surrounding area.  

Councillor Lysette Nicholls proposed that the application be refused in line with Officer’s 

recommendations. 

This was seconded by Councillor Adrian Walsh, was put to the vote and was agreed 

unanimously by the Sub-Committee.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Refuse the application in line with Officer’s recommendations. 

74 23/02297/FUL Land Adjoining Dunlaoghaire, Primrose Lane, Weald  

Elloise Street, Planning Officer, introduced the application for a proposed new dwelling to 

replace redundant stables and store, to create a holiday let (amended plans).  

John Duff addressed the Sub-Committee and spoke in objection to the application.  

The Democratic Services Officer read out a statement from the applicants Sam and Adrian 

Smart.  

The Planning Officer drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the following points; 

 The application had come before the Sub-Committee due to Bampton Parish Council 

objecting to the scheme and due to the site visit. 

 The application was being considered under the West Oxfordshire Local Plan policy, 

E4 Sustainable tourism. The current stables on the site had been considered not 

worthy of retention 

 The proposed development was of a high-quality design and the footprint did not 

exceed the current concrete site footprint. The Planning Officer confirmed that there 

Page 7



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

04/March2024 

 

 

had been a structure on the site when reviewing the map from 1899 and it could be 

inferred that there was a dwelling house with a range.  

 The proposed accommodation would be on a site where residential development 

would not normally be permitted therefore a condition had been included to ensure 

holiday tenancies were not to exceed 8 weeks, with a relevant noise condition too.  

 The Planning Officer clarified that even though the applicants flood risk assessment 

considered the site to fall under Flood Zone 1, the Environmental Agency mapping data 

stated the site was within Flood Zone 2 (FZ2) and as a result was to be considered in 

FZ2. A condition had been included to cover provision for surface water drainage and 

to ensure flooding would not be exacerbated in the locality.  

 The Conservation Officer did not submit any objections and it was felt that the holiday 

let would have a positive influence on the surrounding area. 

 There were no additional representations submitted. The Planning Officer 

recommended approval of the application.  

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points: 

 Councillor Alaric Smith declared an interest due to receiving representations from 

both sides.  

 The Sub-Committee asked for clarification regarding the matter of residential 

properties not being permitted however a holiday let would be acceptable. The 

Planning Officer explained that the application was being considered under West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan policy E4 and not under a new dwellings policy H2. Therefore, 

conditions had been applied to the report to prevent permanent residential use.  

 The Sub-Committee asked how the condition of holiday tenancies beyond 8 weeks 

would be monitored. Would the applicants send information automatically on length of 

stays by holiday tenants? The Planning Officer confirmed that 8 weeks was the standard 

period of time for a holiday let. The holiday let condition would cover the use of the 

property, if there was a report of a permanent resident the Enforcement Officer would 

ask for a record of those who had stayed at the property.  

 The Sub-Committee asked that a condition be included for Permitted Development 

Rights to prevent the property being extended as the site is in a conservation area.  

 The Sub-Committee also raised concerns regarding precedent being set in this location 

and the potential of further development in this location and whether conditions could 

restrict further development. The Planning Officer confirmed that as the Council was 

considering what was within the redline, it could not impose any conditions that would 

not be reasonable. Any new application would fully be considered on its own merits. In 

addition, it was asked whether conditions could be placed on the blueline area of the 

applicants ownership which again was not considered reasonable.  

 The Sub-Committee raised concerns that the use of the site would differ considerably 

from a stable to a dwelling albeit a holiday let. The footprint of the proposed dwelling 

looked bigger than the current stables. The site was in Flood Zone 2 so would not be 

suitable for a dwelling. The Planning Officer confirmed that the stable was not suitable 

for retention. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) stated that Holiday 

Page 8



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

04/March2024 

 

 

Lets, Student Accommodation, hotels were all under the same grouping and therefore 

would be acceptable in the location.   

Councillor Nick Leverton proposed that the application be refused on policy EH10, the impact 

and harm to the conservation area.  

This was seconded by Councillor Michele Mead, was put to the vote. There were 4 votes for 

the proposal, 6 votes against the proposal and 3 abstentions. The Vote was not carried.  

Councillor Andy Goodwin proposed that the application be approved in line with Officer’s 

recommendations and to include a condition for permitted development rights restrictions.  

This was seconded by Councillor Andrew Prosser, was put to the vote. There were 7 votes 

for the proposal, 4 against the proposal and 2 abstentions. The vote was carried.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Approve the application in line with Officer’s recommendations, with an additional 

condition on permitted development rights.  

75 23/02404/FUL Land Known as the Ashbed, Ladburn Lane, Shilton  

Clare Anscombe, Senior Planning Officer, introduced the application for the erection of 3 

detached dwellings and cart-lodge style garages, the formation of a vehicle access, and 

associated works (amended plans).  

Sarah Colson, the applicant addressed the Sub-Committee and clarified the following points 

regarding the need for chimneys when the application stated air sourced heat pumps were to 

be installed. The chimneys were for aesthetics of the design. The felling of Ash trees had been 

the result of Ash Die Back on advice of the Forestry Commission in 2018 and 2023. There had 

been a 176% increase in the replanting of trees and shrubs.  

The Planning Officer drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the following points; 

 The application had to be considered under the West Oxfordshire Local Plan and the 

Shilton Neighbourhood Plan.  

 The application was contrary to policies T1 and T3 for sustainable transport. There 

would be a heavy reliance on the private motor car as the bus stop on the B4020 is 

not safely accessible and lies on an unpaved section of road. There are limited facilities 

within close proximity of the site including no pharmacy, shop or school.   

 The increase in development to the site would result in harm to the village by adding 

to the soft edge of the village and the erosion of the rural setting. There would be a 

loss of woodland and woodland habitats resulting in a detrimental impact on 

conservation within the area.  

 The compensatory planting of trees and shrubs was at a different site and of no benefit 

to the development area.  

 There were no objections from OCC Highways, Thames Water however the Ecology 

and Drainage Officers had both asked for conditions to be included.  

 

 

 

Page 9



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

04/March2024 

 

 

 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points: 

 The Sub-Committee asked about the definition of self-build housing. Abby Fettes 

confirmed that the definition of self-build housing had recently changed and that the 

dwellings were considered to be self-builds. 

 The Sub-Committee raised concerns regarding the conservation and protection of 

woodland areas, the impact on the edge of the village, and the re-planting of shrubs and 

trees.  

 The Sub-Committee raised concerns about the possible extension to the village of 

Shilton and how this would impact the village itself. There was concern about the lack 

of amenities.  

Councillor Nick Leverton proposed that the application be refused in line with Officer’s 

recommendations. 

This was seconded by Councillor Dan Levy , was put to the vote. There were 11 votes in for 

the proposal, no votes against the proposal and 2 abstentions. The Vote was carried.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Refuse the application in line with the Officer’s recommendations.  

76 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers was received and 

noted.  

Page 70; Item 3; 23/01778/FUL North Leigh. 

Councillor Harry St John raised a query relating change of use of car park to serve Eynsham 

Hall, and whether this was a permanent change. Elloise Street, Planning Officer, confirmed that 

the use was until April 2024 and a temporary arrangement to assist with building works.  

Page 74; Item 26; 23/02971/FUL Carterton South.  

Councillor Michele Mead, confirmed that the hedgerow had been removed from this site. 

Page 77; Item 45; 23/03182/HHD Alvescot and Filkins. 

Councillor Dan Levy raised the point of being mindful when allowing permitted development 

that developments are not increased in size.  

Page 81; Item 70; 23/03354/S73 Witney West. 

Councillor Andrew Prosser asked for clarification on removal of condition 1 and variation of 

condition 4 and why the application had not come back to the Sub-Committee. The 

Development Manager advised that the answer would be sought from the Case Officer.   

 

Page 10



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

04/March2024 

 

 

 

77 Appeal Decisions  

There was no Appeals report to note.  

 

The Meeting closed at 3.49 pm 

 

CHAIR 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 2nd April 2024 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Business Manager. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item Application Number Address Officer 

15-18 

 

23/02825/HHD Laurel Cottage  Foxburrow 

Lane 

 

Clare 

Anscombe 

 

19-31 

 

23/03111/FUL Plot 4 Viscount Industrial Estate 

 

Joan Desmond 

 

32-37 

 

24/00175/HHD Olde Well Cottage 109 Station 

Road 

 

Elloise Street 

 

38-41 24/00285/LBC Olde Well Cottage 109 Station 

Road 

 

Elloise Street 

 

Page 14



 

Application Number 23/02825/HHD 

Site Address Laurel Cottage  

Foxburrow Lane 

Crawley 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 9TS 

Date 19th March 2024 

Officer Clare Anscombe 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Crawley Parish Council 

Grid Reference 434314 E       212066 N 

Committee Date 2nd April 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Existing pair of flat roofed dormers replaced with single dormer, proposed additional dormer 

 

 

Page 15



Applicant Details: 

Lee Dingwall 

Laurel Cottage 

Foxburrow Lane 

Crawley 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 9TS 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  No objection.  
 

2 Representations 

 

2.1 No third party representations have been received to date. The public consultation period expired 

on 6th March 2024. 

 

3 The Applicant's Case 

 

3.1 The applicant has not submitted any supporting statement. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H6NEW Existing housing 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application relates to an existing detached dwelling located to the south of Foxburrow Lane in 

the village of Crawley. The proposed development is for the replacement of flat roofed dormers on 

the northern elevation with a single dormer and an additional dormer to replace an existing rooflight. 

The application is before Members as the applicant is related to Councillor Dingwall.  

 

5.2 Planning permission reference 16/02526/HHD was approved in October 2016 for the 'erection of 

side extension to create playroom and car port with bedroom above. Insertion of three dormer 

windows in South elevation and erection of extension to North elevation to provide additional first 

floor bedroom.'  

 

5.3 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Page 16



• Siting, Design and Form; and 

• Impact on amenity. 

 

Principle 

 

5.4 Your officers consider that the principle of the proposed development is acceptable as the new 

dormers fall within the curtilage of an existing dwelling. Policy H6 requires alterations to existing 

dwellings to respect the character of the surrounding area and not unacceptably affect the 

environment of people living in or visiting that area. Therefore, the proposed development is 

considered to be acceptable subject to design, character and amenity considerations.   

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.5 The proposed dormers consist of render and timber with a tile and felt roof and white UPVC 

windows to match the existing dormers on the south elevation. As the height, materials and windows 

of the proposed dormers reflect that of the existing approved dormers on the southern elevation, it 

is considered that the proposal would form a logical complement to the existing scale and character 

of the existing dwelling and so is acceptable in terms of design, scale and form. 

 

5.6 In terms of visual amenity, the proposed dormers would not be conspicuous in the street scene and 

so Officers consider that the proposal would conserve the visual amenity of the area.  

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.7 The Crawley Inn lies to the north and New Inn Cottage is to the north-east. The Lowlands Planning 

Sub-Committee resolved to grant planning approval for the conversion of the pub to dwellings in 

January 2024, subject to a legal agreement (ref. 23/00539/FUL). Due to the close proximity of the 

location of the proposed dormers to the adjoining properties and given that the existing trees along 

the boundary with The Crawley Inn do not appear to fall within the ownership of the applicant so 

their retention could not be secured through condition, to protect privacy in adjoining properties, it 

is considered to be necessary to impose a condition requiring all new windows on the north 

elevation to be fitted with obscure glazing prior to the first occupation of the development. There 

are other windows on the southern elevation of the property which are not obscure glazed and 

which Officers consider would allow sufficient daylight into the principal rooms where the new 

dormers are located.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.8 Taking all of the above issues into consideration, Officers consider that the proposal complies with 

policies OS2, OS4 and H6 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan (2018) and is therefore recommended 

for approval, subject to conditions. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

Page 17



2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of 

doubt as to what is permitted.  

 

4. Before first occupation of the development hereby permitted the new windows along the 

northern elevation shall be fitted with obscure glazing and shall be retained in that condition 

thereafter. 

 

REASON: To safeguard privacy in the adjacent properties. 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Clare Anscombe 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 19th March 2024 

Page 18



 

Application Number 23/03111/FUL 

Site Address Plot 4 

Viscount Industrial Estate 

Station Road 

Brize Norton 

Oxfordshire 

  
Date 19th March 2024 

Officer Joan Desmond 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Brize Norton Parish Council 

Grid Reference 430587 E       205971 N 

Committee Date 2nd April 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Erection of four industrial units and associated works 

 

 

Page 19



Applicant Details: 

Mr Aniket Chhipa 

30 Dalston Gardens 

Stanmore 

HA7 1BH 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Env Health Contamination The consultant has developed a conceptual site model for the site 

based on the findings of a desk study and site walk over. The 

consultant recommends that a site investigation is required to further 

refine the conceptual site model.  

 

In general the findings and conclusions of the report are supported, 

although the use of the neighbouring site as military land has not been 

considered in the conceptual site model.  

 

Given that further investigation is required a site investigation 

condition is recommended.  
 

District Ecologist  Insufficient information has been submitted with regards to 

demonstrating a measurable biodiversity net gain. Therefore, the 

proposal does not comply with the requirements of the Local Plan 

policy EH3 and paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework. 

 

Insufficient information has been submitted to enable the Local 

Planning Authority to fully assess the extent to which great crested 

newts, that are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 

1981 (as amended), and the Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 (as amended) may be affected by the proposed 

development. The Local Planning Authority is therefore unable to 

fully assess the development in respect of the requirements of the 

National Planning Policy Framework, The Planning Practice Guidance, 

West Oxfordshire District's Local Plan Policy EH3, and ODPM 

Circular 06/2005. Furthermore, the Local Planning Authority is also 

unable to fully assess the proposals in the light of the three 

derogation tests, as described in the ODPM Circular 06/2005 and 

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as 

amended), preventing the Local Planning Authority from discharging 

its statutory duty with regards to European protected species.   
 

Thames Water Thames Water would advise that with regard to WASTE WATER 

NETWORK and SEWAGE TREATMENT WORKS infrastructure 

capacity, we would not have any objection to the above planning 

application, based on the information provided. 

With regard to SURFACE WATER drainage, Thames Water would 

advise that if the developer follows the sequential approach to the 

disposal of surface water we would have no objection. 

Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be 

Page 20



fitted in all car parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the 

effective use of petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted 

discharges entering local watercourses. 

On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise 

that with regard to water network and water treatment 

infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the above 

planning application.  
 

Parish Council Although In principle, Brize Norton Parish Council does not oppose 

the construction of these four industrial units, we do have concerns 

about two items, namely foul water drainage and traffic. 

 

Foul Water Drainage. 

Contrary to the information provided by Infrastructure C.S Limited in 

section 9.0 and their drawing number 0200/PO1, due to the location 

of Viscount Court, which is south of the old railway bridge and RAF 

Brize Norton runway, the existing foul water system for the whole 

site does not discharge into a sewerage pumping station (SPS) as it 

has nowhere to pump to. Viscount Court actually has its own 

sewerage treatment works (STW) and from there, treated foul water 

discharges into the adjacent stream. 

This is also contrary to Thames Water 'standard letter' response as 

Viscount Court is not connected to the public sewer network. 

 

With this in mind, the Parish Council wishes to raise the following 

questions: 

Is the current foul water system adequate for the total number of 

proposed units on site because the workforce has grown considerably 

since the system was first installed? Will the treated water being 

discharged into the adjacent stream meet all the health and safety 

regulations to sufficiently avoid pollution incidents? 

Is the Environment Agency (EA) aware of this additional discharge 

into the adjacent stream? 

Traffic. 

Referring to the document produced by 'Origin' sections 2.9 and 2.11 

are incorrect and misleading. 

Referring to Google Maps, it can be clearly seen that Station Road is 

only classified as the A4095 from Bampton up to the junction where it 

changes direction and runs in a northeast direction towards 

Witney. (The A4095 actually connects Bampton to Witney). Station 

Road continues northwards from this junction and is unclassified. It 

runs past Viscount Court, through the village of Brize Norton and up 

to the mini roundabout at the church. At this point, the road 

becomes Manor Road, continues northwards onto Minster Road, and 

then joins the B4477 and onto the A40. 

 

Contrary to section 2.11, Station Road does not provide a connection 

to the A420. As detailed above it only goes southwards to Bampton. 

There are two roads running southwards from Bampton to the 

A420, one is Buckland Road and the other is the continuation of the 

Page 21



A4095 to Clanfield and Radcot. 

Neither of these roads are suitable for HGV's due to the narrow 

bridges across the River Thames at Buckland and Radcot. 

 

Referring to Table 2, Brize Norton parish council is extremely 

concerned there will be an extra 131 vehicle movements during the 

day and 'Origin' have not provided any estimate of how many of these 

will pass northwards through the village of Brize Norton to gain 

access to Carterton or the A40. Station Road is unclassified and 

where it passes through the village, it is very narrow in places, has on 

street parking, and only has footpaths on the east side of the road 

through the majority of the village, some of which are only 800mm 

wide in several locations. These narrow footpaths on the east side of 

Station Road are not only used by pedestrians walking through the 

village, but also by parents and children attending the pre-school, 

primary school and the members of the community attending the 

village café and sports pavilion, all of which are on the west side of 

Station Road and there is no pedestrian crossing. 

 

The volume of traffic passing through the village of Brize Norton is of 

great concern to the community and is evidenced in Brize Norton's 

Neighbourhood Plan Regulation 14 consultation Document Section 

5. Brize Norton Neighbourhood Plan - Brize Norton, Oxfordshire 

(brizenortonplan.org.uk) Station Road is already suffering with the 

accumulative effect of the large housing development known as Brize 

Meadow, of which the predicted traffic flow was reached 9 years 

ahead of schedule (Brize Norton Neighbourhood Plan Evidence 

Appendix 06, Document D, Section 2). Appendices - Brize Norton 

Neighbourhood Plan (brizenortonplan.org.uk) Brize Meadow consists 

of 700 homes (now 799) and is part of the Local Plan commitment to 

provide 2,680 homes in the Carterton sub-area during the 2011 - 

2031 Local Plan period which itself, is currently under review. The 

Parish Council would question if the applicant has taken into account 

this accumulative effect of the 2031 Local Plan because Station Road is 

used as a 'rat run' for people travelling to and from South 

Oxfordshire and Carterton including its surrounding areas. 

 

OCC have also provided evidence that Station Road, despite being 

unclassified, was carrying as much traffic as many of the 'A' classed 

roads in Oxfordshire as far back as 2018. (Brize Norton 

Neighbourhood Plan Evidence Appendix 06, Document D, Section 4). 

Appendices - Brize Norton Neighbourhood Plan 

(brizenortonplan.org.uk) 

 

As further evidence to support the concerns of our community, an 

image is attached with this response which shows an HGV tanker 

overhanging the edge of the footpath whilst on its way to the 

fuel suppliers based on Viscount Court. This can only be classed as an 

extremely hazardous situation which will be exacerbated if more 

HGV's are permitted to pass through the village. (This image also 

Page 22



appears in the Regulation 14 Consultation Document). 

 

Brize Norton Parish Council therefore considers that an additional 

131 traffic movements will have a major impact on the safety and 

operation of the local highway network and a further impact 

assessment should be carried out because these additional vehicle 

movements cannot be safely accommodated on the road network. It 

should be noted that although OCC has a traffic monitoring station at 

the southern entrance to the village, due to the fact that the majority 

of residents and tradespeople visiting the builders merchants, travel to 

and from the north end of the village, the volume of traffic passing 

through the centre of the village, including the school, is actually 18% 

higher than the OCC traffic volume figure(Brize Norton 

Neighbourhood Plan Evidence Appendix 06, Document D, Section 2). 

Appendices - Brize Norton Neighbourhood Plan 

brizenortonplan.org.uk) 

 

The Parish Council wishes to comment that this application does not 

comply with Policy T3 - Public Transport, Walking and Cycling as 

there is no safe provision for cycling on Station Road. The nearest 

bus stop is in the centre of the village at the church and there is no 

footpath between the southern edge of the settlement area and 

Viscount Court which is south of the runway. Therefore, the only 

means of accessing Viscount Court is by use of a motorised vehicle. 

 

On a final note, the Parish Council would question item 5.5 which 

states that the criteria used in the 'Origin' analysis uses the parameter 

" Sites in urban areas and edge of town locations". Viscount Court is 

actually in a rural area on the edge of a Parish boundary. 

 

With the above in mind, Brize Norton Parish Council is extremely 

concerned that should the end user of one of these units be, for 

example, a courier company or a company using HGV's, this traffic 

could potentially pass northwards through the village of Brize Norton. 

The Council therefore requests that if such an end user occupies one 

of these units, then a condition is put in place requiring their vehicles 

to travel the short distance southwards to the A4095 and then travel 

northeast towards the A40. The Parish Council would bring to your 

attention that Bloor Homes Ltd and RAF Brize Norton/MOD require 

their HGV's not to pass through the village. Likewise, Thames Water 

have now instructed their tankers, whenever possible, not to drive 

through the village but to access their SPS in the south of the village 

by way of the A4095. 

 

If such a condition outside the remit of the planning officer, then the 

Parish Council respectfully requests a S106 fund of £45,000.00 to 

provide a pedestrian crossing along with associated paving 

works so that adults and children can cross Station Road in a much 

safer manner. (A precedent has been set by Bloor Homes Ltd as they 

provided three build-outs in the village to contribute towards 

Page 23



road safety). 

 

Taking the above into account, unfortunately the Parish Council 

cannot agree to this planning application until the above questions and 

concerns are resolved. 

 

(Please note, although the Brize Norton Neighbourhood Plan has not 

been adopted yet, the evidence referred to in our response has been 

read and accepted by both WODC and OCC as part of their 

statutory response to the Neighbourhood Plan Regulation 14 

Consultation)  
 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

The TDM team are not able to support the above application 

as it currently stands.  
 

Env Health Noise And Amenity  No objection to this application. I would however ask for an hours of 

working condition to be attached to any consent granted.  
 

MOD MOD (Brize Norton)  No Comment Received.  
 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

OCC Transport raise an objection to the application as further 

clarification/information is required on transport matters. The 

Highways Agreements Team has also requested an assessment which 

tracks the existing site access. 

 

LLFA - No objection subject to conditions. 

 

Archaeology - The proposals outlined would not appear to have an 

invasive impact upon any known archaeological sites or features. As 

such there are no archaeological constraints to this scheme.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 A letter has been received from The Viscourt Management Committee objecting to the application 

on the grounds of the proposed foul water drainage and advise that they have not been consulted 

and the pumping station does not have sufficient capacity for the buildings proposed in the 

application. 

 

2.2  One objection letter on behalf of the village preschool raising concerns relating to traffic and child 

safety in the village. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 This site is within an established industrial estate with its own private access road. The access to the 

front is generous with two wide entrances/exits and a large, unobstructed open forecourt measuring 

15.1m by 39.7m (excluding parking areas). Vehicle parking has been provided in line with OCC's 

latest guidance and both cycle parking and EV charging provision exceed the required standards. It is 

therefore hoped that the amended site plan be acceptable. 

 

 

Page 24



4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

OS5NEW Supporting infrastructure 

E1NEW Land for employment 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T2NEW Highway improvement schemes 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH4 Public realm and green infrastructure 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

CA5 Carterton sub-area strategy 

NPPF 2023 

NATDES National Design Guide 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5  Planning Assessment 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This application site comprises an existing industrial site located at Viscount Industrial Estate situated 

on the west side of Station Road near Brize Norton Airfield. 

 

5.2  The application is reported to Committee at the request of Cllr Pearson on the grounds that scale, 

transport, foul water drainage, and ecology all seem to be problematic areas.  

 

5.3  In terms of relevant planning history, permission was granted for the erection of three industrial 

units, one portakabin and two storage containers, associated parking, access, landscaping and service 

road (08/1559/P/FP) in 2010.  This permission has been partly implemented and as such is still extant.  

This permission was however, granted to enable existing companies currently operating on the site 

to expand.  As such a Condition (11) was attached to that permission which specified as follows:  

The additional area of land hereby authorised shall only be used by those companies specified on plan 

150:S:BN:2007 unless written consent is first given by the Local Planning Authority to any other occupier. 

REASON: It is only the use of the extended site by existing companies that renders the proposal acceptable in 

policy terms.  (Policy E8 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011) 

 

5.4  Plan 150:S:BN:2007 specifies that Plot 1 (this application site) is to be occupied by R Griffiths 

Woodwear Ltd.  The information submitted with this application clearly states that the type of 

businesses that will occupy the proposed units is not known and as such is unrelated to the extant 

permission which restricts the use of the site to R Griffiths Woodwear Ltd.  As such it is Officer 

opinion that the extant permission is not a realistic 'fall-back' position and as such can be given only 

limited, if any, weight. 

 

Page 25



5.5  In addition, the extant permission for Plot 1 relates to a smaller building and the 2010 permission 

also included a communal car parking area/lorry parking for all 5 Plots.  The agent advises that the 

extant consent for Plot 1 is for a unit of 675 sq m with 22 parking bays. 

 

5.6  Pre-application advice was sought in 2020 (20/02150/PREAPP) to update the design and layout of an 

existing approval (08/1559/P/FP) for plots 1-5. The pre-app advice related to this site (Incorrectly 

referred to as Plot 4 as it is in fact Plot 1).   

 

5.7  In 2013, planning permission was granted for the erection of five industrial units with associated 

parking and access on Plot 2 (13/0457/P/FP).  This permission has been implemented. 

 

The Development 

 

5.8  This application seeks permission for the erection of four industrial units and associated works. 

Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties, officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

• Principle of Development; 

• Design/Layout/Visual Impact 

• Highways;  

• Flood Risk/Drainage 

• Residential Amenity; 

• Trees/Ecology; and 

• Other Matters 

 

Principle of Development 

 

5.9  In October 2023 the Levelling-Up and Regeneration Bill ("LURB") received royal ascent. The LURB 

replaces Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 in favour of new Section 

38(5A) - (5C) which states:  

 

(5A) For the purposes of any area in England, subsections (5B) and (5C) apply if, for the purposes of 

any determination to be made under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to— 

a) the development plan, and  

b) any national development management policies.  

 

(5B) Subject to subsections (5) and (5C), the determination must be made in accordance with the 

development plan and any national development management policies, unless material considerations 

strongly indicate otherwise. 

 

(5C) If to any extent the development plan conflicts with a national development management policy, 

the conflict must be resolved in favour of the national development management policy.  

 

5.10  At this time, no national development management policies have been adopted and as such, the 

application should be determined in accordance with the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 unless 

material considerations strongly indicate otherwise. 

 

5.11  While the proposed development site is not expressly included as an allocation within the Local 

Plan, Policy E1 states "proposals to improve the effectiveness of employment operations on existing 

employment sites will be supported where commensurate with the scale of the town or village and 

Page 26



the character of the area. This site forms part of the Viscount Industrial site and as outlined above 

was part of a planning consent for industrial development in 2010.  As such, the development can be 

supported in principle, subject to compliance with other local plan policies.   

 

Design/Layout/Visual Impact 

 

5.12  Policy OS2 states that all development should be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its 

context having regard to the potential cumulative impact of development in the locality; form a 

logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the 

area; and be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing 

occupants. 

 

5.13  Policy OS4 requires new development to respect and where possible enhance the character and 

quality of the surroundings and contribute to local distinctiveness. 

 

5.14 Policy E1 requires development to be commensurate with the scale of the town or village and the 

character of the area.  

 

5.15 Policy EH2 of the Local Plan states that "new development should conserve and, where possible, 

enhance the intrinsic character, quality and distinctive natural and man-made features of the local 

landscape… Proposed development should avoid causing pollution, especially noise and light, which 

has an adverse impact upon landscape character and should incorporate measures to maintain or 

improve the existing level of tranquillity and dark-sky quality, reversing existing pollution where 

possible. 

 

5.16  This proposal is for a building containing 4 units, 3 of approximately 290 sq m and one of 

approximately 470 sq m. The bulk of the floor area is at ground floor level, with each unit having a 

mezzanine area covering approximately 25% of the ground floor in the case of units 3-4, and 33% for 

unit 1. The proposed building has a total footprint of 1,155 sq m and a ridge height of 8.45m. The 

total plot area is 2,630 sq m.  Externally, the building is to be clad in reconstituted coursed stone at 

the lower level of the front elevation, and in two types of profiled metal cladding, one with large 

vertical corrugations and one with small horizontal corrugations.  The submitted Design and Access 

Statement advises that this will help to achieve a variety of textures on the large front elevation.  The 

scale and design of the proposed building is considered to be acceptable and will relate well with the 

existing industrial buildings.   

 

5.17  Following concerns raised by the Landscape Officer in terms of encroachment into a planted buffer 

zone along the southern boundary which was an important aspect when allowing the expansion of 

the industrial estate, revised plans have been submitted to relocate the building further forward on 

the plot and further away from the southern boundary.  This will ensure that the planted buffer zone 

is retained and protected. 

 

Highways 

 

5.18  Access to Viscount Industrial Estate is via a private industrial access road off Station Road. Access 

to the proposed development on Plot 4 will be via 2 entrances from the Industrial Access Road 

towards the west.  The existing eastern access on the outside of the bend in the access road will be 

closed off and a new entrance is proposed to the west of the second access.  The submitted 

Transport Statement concludes that access to the Viscount Industrial Estate is via an industrial access 

road off Station Road. The access was considered as part of the application for Phase 2 on the 

Page 27



industrial estate and found to be acceptable from a highway safety point of view. The visibility splays 

meet MfS standards for an access onto a 60mph road. It is therefore considered that this access is 

capable, in safety terms, of accommodating the additional movements associated with this 

development.  The net trip impact results show that the proposed development will generate a total 

of 5 additional two-way movements in the AM peak hour and a total of 6 additional two-way 

movements in the PM peak hour compared to the consented trips for Plot 4. These additional 

movements would have an immaterial impact on the safety and operation of the local highway 

network. 

 

5.19  Following an objection and queries raised by OCC Transport, the agent responded with a revised 

layout drawing and written statement that advised as follows: 

This site is within an established industrial estate with its own private access road. The access to the front is 

generous with two wide entrances/exits and a large, unobstructed open forecourt measuring 15.1m by 39.7m 

(excluding parking areas). Vehicle parking has been provided in line with OCC's latest guidance and both cycle 

parking and EV charging provision exceed the required standards.' 

 

5.20  OCC Transport maintain their objection however and comment that the proposed development 

results in a requirement of a maximum of 14 car parking spaces and a minimum of 12 cycle parking 

spaces (7 staff and 5 visitor).  In terms of cycle parking provision (18 spaces) the development 

complies with OCC's parking standards but the proposed 16 vehicle parking spaces fails to comply 

with OCC's parking standards. Requested information has also still not been submitted including the 

frequency / trip generation and size of vehicles for servicing / operational / delivery needs. OCC 

Transport advise that safe visibility splays should be maintained and free from obstruction for both 

the site access and the private road junction with Station Road. In relation to the private road 

junction with Station Road (60mph posted speed limit), it should be demonstrated that safe visibility 

splays can be accommodated.  The OCC Highways Agreements team state that 'the assessment 

should track the existing site access as it appears that the proposal is to use larger vehicles than 

currently access the site. We would need assurance that they are able to do so safely.' Swept path 

analysis of the largest anticipated vehicles should be undertaken at the site access with Station Road 

in order to demonstrate safe two-way operation. 

 

Flood Risk/Drainage   

 

5.21  The development site falls entirely within Flood Zone 1, which is classified as low probability of 

flooding.  A Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy submitted with the application advises that the 

development proposals together with the site layout have been assessed in relation to the provision 

of SuDS drainage associated with the works. The report has assessed the feasibility of implementing 

the SuDS hierarchal approach and has confirmed that this development is likely to be able to install 

suitable drainage measures into the design proposals. Flood risk to the site has been assessed, and 

where risks have been deemed above low, mitigation measures have been proposed to reduce the 

risk to the site.  The report concludes that having assessed the other forms of flood risk to and from 

the development site, the site is not considered at high risk from any other sources of flooding.  The 

LLFA has raised no objection to the application, subject to drainage conditions. 

 

5.22  In terms of foul drainage, the report advises that the development proposals will seek to discharge 

foul water via gravity from the development site into the existing foul water pumping station to the 

north the east of the site which serves the estate. The pumping station was designed with connection 

for this plot in mind so has been confirmed with the owner that it has sufficient capacity for the 

additional flows.  The Viscourt Management Committee has advised however that they have not 

been consulted and the pumping station does not have sufficient capacity for the buildings proposed 

Page 28



in the application.  The agent however, disputes this view and advises that discussions were held with 

the vice-chair of the management committee.   

 

5.23  Thames Water (TW) recognises that this catchment is subject to high infiltration flows during 

certain groundwater conditions. TW consider that the scale of the proposed development doesn't 

materially affect the sewer network and as such has no objection, however advices that care needs to 

be taken when designing new networks to ensure they don't surcharge and cause flooding. In the 

longer term TW, along with other partners, are working on a strategy to reduce groundwater 

entering the sewer networks.  

 

5.24  In summary, TW has not raised an objection on waste water and sewerage treatment works 

infrastructure capacity grounds and this issue could be addressed by the imposition of an 

appropriately worded condition. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.25  The site adjoins an existing airbase and industrial estate. There are however residential properties 

located opposite the main entrance to the estate and previous applications have contained conditions 

seeking to secure residential amenity. The EHO is again recommending conditions be imposed to 

protect the amenity of the neighbourhood. 

 

Ecology 

 

5.26  Policy EH3 states that development should protect and enhance biodiversity to achieve an overall 

net gain in biodiversity.  

 

5.27  This application is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) which details the 

results as follows: 

• Within the site there are habitats of hard-standing, bare ground with sparse vegetation, 

introduced shrub, scattered trees and a native hedgerow along the southern boundary. 

• Other than the hedgerow, habitats are considered to be of negligible or low ecological value. 

• All trees within the site are assessed as having 'none' potential for roosting bats (Collins, 2023). 

• Suitable shelter habitat for hedgehogs is limited to the southern boundary hedgerow. 

• Proposals will result in the loss of hard-standing, bare ground, introduced shrub and some 

scattered trees. 

• There are no foreseeable impacts on roosting bats, commuting or foraging bats, amphibians, 

reptiles, invertebrates or other protected/notable species. 

• Badgers and hedgehogs passing through the site during the construction phase of development 

are at risk of injury and trapping due to inadvertent pitfall hazards. 

• If nesting birds are present within the woody habitats at the time of clearance works, there is 

the potential for the destruction of active birds' nests and the killing/injury of eggs/young. 

• New external lighting has the potential to affect bat behaviour 

• Recommendations are made with native landscape planting as well as species-specific 

enhancement including bird/bat boxes. Careful work practices are recommended to protect 

birds, badgers and hedgehogs 

 

5.28  The Council's Ecology Consultant has raised an objection to the application on the following 

grounds: 

Page 29



Insufficient information has been submitted with regards to demonstrating a measurable biodiversity 

net gain. Therefore, the proposal does not comply with the requirements of the Local Plan policy 

EH3 and paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Insufficient information has been submitted to enable the Local Planning Authority to fully assess the 

extent to which great crested newts, that are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 

1981 (as amended), and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) 

may be affected by the proposed development. The Local Planning Authority is therefore unable to 

fully assess the development in respect of the requirements of the National Planning Policy 

Framework, The Planning Practice Guidance, West Oxfordshire District's Local Plan Policy EH3, and 

ODPM Circular 06/2005. Furthermore, the Local Planning Authority is also unable to fully assess the 

proposals in the light of the three derogation tests, as described in the ODPM Circular 06/2005 and 

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), preventing the Local 

Planning Authority from discharging its statutory duty with regards to European protected species.  

 

5.29  Discussions have been on-going in relation to the possible provision of off-site BNG specifying the 

delivery of the required biodiversity units but this issue and the lack of sufficient information to fully 

assess the potential impact on Great Crested Newts remains unresolved. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Archaeology 

 

5.30  The proposals outlined would not appear to have an invasive impact upon any known 

archaeological sites or features. As such there are no archaeological constraints to this scheme. 

 

Energy/Sustainability 

 

5.31  The roof has been designed to accommodate a balance between roof lights (to reduce the need 

for day time lighting) and photovoltaic arrays to provide on site energy generation. No gas or oil 

boilers will be used for heating or hot water, electric and heat pump technology will be used 

throughout. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.32  Whilst the principle of industrial development on this site may be acceptable the objections raised 

by OCC Transport and the Biodiversity Officer remain unresolved.  The application is therefore 

recommended for refusal. 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 

1. The proposed 16 vehicle parking spaces fail to comply with OCC's parking standards and 

insufficient information has been submitted relating to the frequency / trip generation and size of 

vehicles for servicing / operational / delivery needs of the proposed industrial use and no swept 

path analysis has been undertaken of the largest anticipated vehicles at the site access with Station 

Road to demonstrate safe two-way operation.  In addition, the proposal fails to demonstrate that 

safe visibility splays can be accommodated.  As such, the proposed development fails to accord with 

Policies T1, T2, T3 and T4 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and advice in the NPPF. 

 

Page 30



2. Insufficient information has been submitted with regards to demonstrating a measurable biodiversity 

net gain and to enable the Local Planning Authority to fully assess the extent to which great crested 

newts, that are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) may be affected by the 

proposed development. The Local Planning Authority is therefore unable to fully assess the 

development in respect of the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework, The 

Planning Practice Guidance, West Oxfordshire District's Local Plan Policy EH3, and ODPM Circular 

06/2005. Furthermore, the Local Planning Authority is also unable to fully assess the proposals in 

the light of the three derogation tests, as described in the ODPM Circular 06/2005 and The 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), preventing the Local Planning 

Authority from discharging its statutory duty with regards to European protected species.  

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Joan Desmond 

Telephone Number: 01993 861655 

Date: 19th March 2024 

Page 31



 

Application Number 24/00175/HHD 

Site Address Olde Well Cottage 

109 Station Road 

Brize Norton 

Carterton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 3PT  
Date 19th March 2024 

Officer Elloise Street 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Brize Norton Parish Council 

Grid Reference 430267 E       206872 N 

Committee Date 2nd April 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Erection of a single storey extension with attached garage and wood store 

 

 

Page 32



Applicant Details: 

Mrs Fiona Gove 

Olde Well Cottage  

109 Station Road 

Brize Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 3PT 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

WODC Drainage  No objections subject to condition.  
 

Parish Council  BNPC supports the application  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No third party consultee comments received to date.  

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A design and access statement has been submitted as part of this application and can viewed in full 

on our website.  

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

NPPF 2023 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a single storey extension with attached 

garage and wood store at Olde Well Cottage, Brize Norton.  

 

5.2 The application is brought before Members of the Lowlands Area Sub Planning Committee as Brize 

Norton Parish Council have commented in support of the Listed Building application and as per the 

scheme of delegation, the Listed Building Consent is required to be determined by the Committee 

should Officers views be contrary to the Parish Council.   

 

5.3 The application site relates to an existing Grade II Listed Building.  

 

5.4 The site does not fall within any Conservation Area and is located within Flood Zone 2. There are 

no other constraints to consider as part of this application.  

Page 33



 

5.5 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are:  

 

• Siting, Design and Visual Impact 

• Impact on Listed Building 

• Impact on Neighbouring amenity 

• Flood Risk 

• Other Matters 

 

Relevant Planning History  

 

5.6 W81/0258- Alterations to existing structure to provide new garage 

W90/1561 - Re-roofing stonesfield slates to front artificial stone slates to the rear.  

W93/1031 - Demolition of existing lean to & erect new single storey extension conversion of garage 

to playroom relay existing slate roof form velux rooflight. 

W93/1032 - Demolition of existing lean to & erect new single storey extension convert garage to 

playroom relay existing slate roof & form new velux rooflight.  

W99/0433 - Alterations and erection of single storey extension to form new garage. 

W99/0434 - Internal and external alterations to include erection of single storey extension to form 

garage, enlarge playroom and installation of two new windows.  

W2003/1124 - Change of use of playroom to self-contained bed-sit (retrospective), provision of two 

additional parking spaces to the rear.  

W2003/1125 - Internal alterations to change existing playroom into self-contained bed-sit 

(retrospective) and parking for two vehicles to the rear.  

 

Siting, Design and Visual Impact  

 

5.7 The proposed single storey extension is to be adjoined to the existing bedsit on the ground floor 

and provide an additional 2 bedrooms to the property overall. The extension is to be 12m in length 

and 5m in width, with an eaves height of 2.4m and an overall ridge height of 4m. In addition to the 

extension is a single storey oak framed garage which is to be 5.77m in length and 5m in width and 

3.5m in overall height. There is also a small wood store at 1.5m in width and 2.2m in height. The 

proposed materials to be used are Farmington stone for the walls and black framed uPVC windows 

and slate to match the lower roof line.  

 

5.8 Policies OS2 and OS4 are relevant to be considered for the proposed application. Policy OS2 

focuses on development being located in the right places and states that "all development should 

form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of 

the area". Similarly Policy OS4 states that "new development should respect the historic, 

architectural and landscape character of the locality, contribute to local distinctiveness and where 

possible enhance the character and quality of the surroundings. This also links with Section 12 

Paragraph 130 b which states policies and decisions should ensure that developments are visually 

attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping. The 

NPPF also makes reference to local planning authorities preparing design guides and therefore it is 

important to also take regard of the West Oxfordshire Design Guide as a supplementary planning 

document. The design guide states "As an overarching principle, the scale, form and character of the 

original property should be sympathetically reflected in any proposed changes" it also states "New 

buildings and extensions should be well designed in themselves, and in sympathy with the character 

of the area. They should respect the form, siting, scale and massing of the surrounding buildings" 

Page 34



 

5.9 Officers consider that the proposed extensions are an overdevelopment of the existing 

dwellinghouse. The existing dwellinghouse measures at approximately 31m in length however this is 

with multiple additions and extensions as detailed in the relevant planning history. The 1875 maps 

infer that the dwellinghouse would have been approximately 21m in length. The proposed extensions 

would modify the linear nature of the existing dwellinghouse and form an L shape plan form. Officers 

consider that this would be transformative to the dwellinghouse and would detract from the 

character of the original property.  Whilst the extension is stepped down and set low, the overall 

scale at 18m overall would be transformative and over half the length of the existing dwellinghouse. 

The West Oxfordshire Design Guide states: "Extensions or alterations that are of an inappropriate 

scale, or likely to obscure or significantly alter the form or character of the original property, are 

unlikely to be supported; as are extensions or alterations likely to fill a garden area, to provide 

substandard living conditions, or to result in a loss of amenity for neighbouring properties (through 

overlooking o or overshadowing, for example)". In this instance, Officers consider that the proposed 

extensions are not a logical complement to the existing dwellinghouse and negatively affect the 

character of it's simple linear form and are not a sympathetic addition. The extension would also not 

respect the historic character of the dwellinghouse. Officers have considered that the proposed as a 

whole does not represent high quality design and would therefore conflict with Policies in the Local 

Plan, The West Oxfordshire Design Guide and the NPPF. 

 

5.10 The proposed single storey extension and attached garage, would be visible on the street scene and 

Officers consider that the proposal would be an incongruous addition and whilst is set back from the 

street scene, with the proposed porch on the front elevation of the extension, it gives an appearance 

of a primary building and deters from the appearance that it should be secondary subservient. As a 

result, Officers consider it would have a negative appearance on the street scene.  

 

Impact on Listed Building 

 

5.11 Officers are required to take account of section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that in considering whether to grant 

planning permission for any works the local planning authority shall have special regard to the 

desirability of preserving the building, its setting and any features of special architectural or historic 

interest which it possesses. 

 

5.12 Policy EH11 also states proposals for additions or alterations to, or change of use of a Listed 

Building will be permitted where it can be shown to: conserve or enhance the special architectural or 

historic interest of the buildings fabric, detailed features, appearance or character and setting. It is 

also important for Officers to take regard to the section 7 of the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

which also emphasises that the character, fabric and history of the building should be understood as 

fully as possible.  

 

5.13 Therefore, with regard to the impact on the Grade II listed building, the proposed works are 

considered to obscure the historical architecture of the existing listed building. The harm that has 

been caused has been considered to be less than substantial and therefore the balancing exercised of 

paragraph 208 of the NPPF has to be engaged. Officers have considered that the harm is to the lower 

end of less than substantial and that there will be some short-term public benefit of employment 

during the construction phase of the extension. However there has been no evidence to show any 

other public benefit of the scheme to the wider community and the extensions are for the private 

benefit of the owners. 

 

Page 35



5.14 It is also noted that the optimum viable use of a dwellinghouse is in place and there is no evidence 

to suggest this is at risk. The existing dwellinghouse has already been significantly extended and the 

newly proposed extension will have some harm on the simple linear nature of the dwellinghouse.  

 

5.15 The proposed development would not respect the special qualities and historic context of the 

listed building and would not maintain the appearance of the heritage asset given the nature of what 

is proposed and its location. The proposed development would not conform to policies EH9 and 

EH11 of the Local Plan. 

 

Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 

5.16 Given the nature of the new building, Officers are of the opinion that the proposed works would 

not give rise to any adverse impacts in regard to neighbouring amenity.  

 

5.17 Section 12 of the NPPF states to create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which 

promote health and wellbeing, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. Officers 

have carefully considered the residential amenity concerns that may arise from a development and 

have concluded that there are minimal concerns and considered acceptable in terms of residential 

amenity. 

 

Flood Risk 

 

5.18 Local Plan Policy EH7 states 'all sources of flooding (including sewer flooding and surface water 

flooding) will need to be addressed and measures to manage or reduce their impacts, onsite and 

elsewhere, incorporated into the development proposal'. The NPPF 2023 (paragraph 173) states 

'When determining any planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk 

is not increased elsewhere'. 

 

5.19 OCC Drainage Engineers have been consulted on the application due to the dwellinghouse being 

sited within Flood Zone 2 and with the additional built form being proposed it was appropriate to 

seek their comments on the proposal.   

 

5.20 The site lies within flood zone 2 and as part of the proposed development the drainage mitigation 

proposed will be soakaways and the floor levels will be as the existing dwellinghouse and walls will be 

rendered and set internally and all electrical sockets/switches will be placed as high as is practical. 

The site is flat and there is a medium risk to surface water susceptibility.  

 

5.21 Based on the information provided, it has been suggested that a full surface water drainage scheme 

shall be submitted to prior to the commencement of development to ensure that flooding is not 

exacerbated in the locality in which Officers consider acceptable in this location. 

 

5.22 As a result, the proposed development is not seen to exacerbate flooding in this location and as a 

result would not be contrary to Policy H7 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.23 By reason of its siting and scale, the development would be transformative to the dwellinghouse 

and would detract from the character of the original property and would have a negative appearance 

on the street scene. The proposed development would result in an incongruous overdevelopment 

which would have an adverse impact on the historic nature of this Grade 2 Listed Building.  The 

Page 36



proposal would result in less than substantial harm to this heritage asset, which would fail to be 

outweighed by the public benefits of the proposed development as per paragraph 208 of the NPPF. 

Consequently, the proposal would fail to comply with Policies OS2, OS4, H6, EH9 and EH11 of the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide and advice in the NPPF. 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 

1. By reason of its siting and scale, the development would be transformative to the dwellinghouse 

and would detract from the character of the original property and would have a negative 

appearance on the street scene. The proposed development would result in an incongruous 

overdevelopment which would have an adverse impact on the historic nature of this Grade 2 

Listed Building.  The proposal would result in less than substantial harm to this heritage asset, 

which would fail to be outweighed by the public benefits of the proposed development as per 

paragraph 208 of the NPPF. Consequently, the proposal would fail to comply with Policies OS2, 

OS4, H6, EH9 and EH11 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire 

Design Guide and advice in the NPPF. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Elloise Street 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 19th March 2024 

Page 37



 

Application Number 24/00285/LBC 

Site Address Olde Well Cottage 

109 Station Road 

Brize Norton 

Carterton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 3PT  
Date 19th March 2024 

Officer Elloise Street 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Brize Norton Parish Council 

Grid Reference 430267 E       206872 N 

Committee Date 2nd April 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Internal and external alterations to include erection of a single storey extension with attached garage 

and wood store. 

 

Page 38



Applicant Details: 

Mrs Fiona Gove 

Olde Well Cottage 

109 Station Road 

Brize Norton 

Carterton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 3PT 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

 Borderline acceptable  

 

Parish Council  BNPC support the application.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No third party consultee comments received to date.  

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A design and access statement has been submitted as part of this application and can viewed in full 

on our website.  

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This application seeks listed building consent for the erection of a single storey extension with 

attached garage and wood store at Olde Well Cottage, Brize Norton.  

 

5.2 The application is brought before Members of the Lowlands Area Sub Planning Committee as Brize 

Norton Parish Council have commented in support of the Listed Building application and as per the 

scheme of delegation, the Listed Building Consent is required to be determined by the Committee 

should Officers views be contrary to the Parish Council.   

 

5.3 The application site relates to an existing Grade II Listed Building. 

 

5.4 The site does not fall within any Conservation Area and is located within Flood Zone 2. There are 

no other constraints to consider as part of this application. 

 

Planning History 

 

5.5 W81/0258- Alterations to existing structure to provide new garage. 

Page 39



W90/1561 - Re-roofing stonesfield slates to front artificial stone slates to the rear.  

W93/1031 - Demolition of existing lean to & erect new single storey extension conversion of garage 

to playroom relay existing slate roof form velux rooflight. 

W93/1032 - Demolition of existing lean to & erect new single storey extension convert garage to 

playroom relay existing slate roof & form new velux rooflight.  

W99/0433 - Alterations and erection of single storey extension to form new garage. 

W99/0434 - Internal and external alterations to include erection of single storey extension to form 

garage, enlarge playroom and installation of two new windows.  

W2003/1124 - Change of use of playroom to self-contained bed-sit (retrospective), provision of two 

additional parking spaces to the rear.  

W2003/1125 - Internal alterations to change existing playroom into self-contained bed-sit 

(retrospective) and parking for two vehicles to the rear.  

 

Impact upon the Listed Building 

 

5.6 The proposed single storey extension is to be adjoined to the existing bedsit on the ground floor 

and provide an additional 2 bedrooms to the property overall. The extension is to be 12m in length 

and 5m in width. With an eaves height of 2.4m and an overall ridge height of 4m. In addition to the 

extension is a single storey oak framed garage which is to be 5.77m in length and 5m in width and 

3.5m in overall height. There is also to be a small wood store at 1.5m in width and 2.2m in height. 

The proposed materials to be used are Farmington stone for the walls and black framed uPVC 

windows and slate to match the lower roof line.  

  

5.7 Listed Building applications are not subject to section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004. Accordingly, the application does not need to be determined in accordance with 

the development plan. Rather, applications must be determined in accordance with section 16(2) of 

the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (the Act). Given the relevance of 

Local Plan Policies OS4, EH9 and EH11 to this proposal, these policies and the supplementary 

guidance contained in the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (an adopted SPD) are material 

considerations in this assessment, as is the NPPF 2023. 

 

5.8 Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining applications, 

local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the 

significance of heritage assets. Paragraph 200 requires the applicant to describe the significance of 

affected heritage assets. Paragraph 205 states that when considering the impact of a proposed 

development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, such as a Listed Building, or 

Conservation Area, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more 

important the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a 

designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), 

should require clear and convincing justification (paragraph 206). Paragraph 208 states that where a 

development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, this harm should harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, 

where appropriate, securing its optimal viable use. 

 

5.9 The proposed extensions will result in a substantial increase to the building's scale in terms of its 

footprint.  Its existing linear plan form is also to be changed and the character of the building will be 

largely lost due to the new extension proposed which is to be 18m in length whereby the original 

dwellinghouse is no more than 31m. There is no clear and convincing justification that outweighs the 

harm of the proposed extension, alteration and works to listed building.  

 

Page 40



5.10 There are no discernible (or substantive evidence of any) public benefits relating to this current 

proposal to outweigh the less than substantial harm caused by the proposed extensions and 

alterations. 

 

5.11 Officers consider that the proposed development would cause some less than substantial harm to 

the Grade 2 listed building and the public benefits of the scheme do not outweigh the harm to the 

listed building. The proposed development would not respect the special qualities and historic 

context of the listed building and would not maintain the appearance of the heritage asset given the 

nature of what is proposed and its location. The proposed development would not conform to 

policies EH9 and EH11 of the Local Plan. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.12 For the reasons outlined above, the scheme would fail to preserve the Grade II listed building, its 

features and significance and is considered to have no public benefit that would outweigh the less 

than substantial harm caused. The proposal is therefore judged to be contrary to the duty of set out 

in Section 16 of the NPPF and Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990 and Polices EH9 and EH11 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West 

Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 and the NPPF. 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1. The scheme would fail to preserve the Grade II listed building, its features and significance and it 

is considered there is very minimal public benefit that would not outweigh the less than 

substantial harm caused by the proposed extensions. The proposal is therefore judged to be 

contrary to Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, 

Polices EH9 and EH11 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and advice in the NPPF. 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Elloise Street 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 19th March 2024 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 21st February 2024 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  23/00518/FUL Witney East WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of four apartments at second floor level with associated stair, lift and flood access, 

demolition of existing metal roof structure. 

Unit 32  Bridge Street Mills Industrial Estate Witney 

Mr D Wood 

 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

2.  23/01829/S73 Witney East APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of conditions 4 (schedule of materials) and 7 (tree planting scheme) and removal of 

condition 6 (Biodiversity Enhancement and Management Plan) of planning permission 

17/04043/FUL 

Cogges Manor Farm  Church Lane Witney 

Paul Evans 

 

 

3.  23/02695/FUL Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

WDN 

  

Construction of two, 4 bed dwellings and associated works 

138 Abingdon Road Standlake Witney 

Mr and Mrs Geoffrey and Victoria Ling 

 

 

4.  23/02830/FUL Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External alterations including erection of single storey rear and side extensions, entrance 

porch and provision of rear driveway and over-spill parking 

The Red Lion Church Road Northmoor 

The Northmoor Lion Ltd 

 

 

5.  23/02831/LBC Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations including erection of single storey rear and side extensions 

and entrance porch 

The Red Lion Church Road Northmoor 

The Northmoor Lion Ltd 

 

 

6.  23/02906/CND Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Discharge of Conditions 5 (cycle parking facilities), 7 (Travel Plan) and 12 (details of the 

substation) from Planning Permission 22/02354/S73 

Unit 3 Stanton Harcourt Road Eynsham 

Mr Paul Cooper 

 

 

Page 44



DELGAT 
 

7.  23/02923/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 5 (odour management plan) and 6 (manufacturers specifications, 

commissioning report/certificate and maintenance schedule) of Planning Permission 

22/03548/FUL 

The Bell Inn Langford Lechlade 

Mr P Creed And T Noest 

 

 

8.  23/02941/HHD Bampton and Clanfield APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to include the removal of existing WC and shed attached to rear of property, 

construction of a retaining garden wall with alterations to existing external ground levels at 

the rear of the dwelling and underpinning works to basement 

Thatched Cottage  Church Street Bampton 

Mr And Ms M And R Taylor And Dakin-Potts 

 

 

9.  23/02942/LBC Bampton and Clanfield APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the removal of existing WC and sheds attached to 

the rear of the property, reconfiguration of internal layout to include refurbishment of the 

basement along with underpinning works (amended plans and description). 

Thatched Cottage  Church Street Bampton 

Mr And Ms M And R Taylor And Dakin-Potts 

 

 

10.  23/03058/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 5 (archaeological watching briefl), 7 (surface water drainage scheme), 

10 (remediation scheme) and 14 (foul water drainage) of Planning Permission 22/03058/FUL 

Land At (E) 441112 (N) 205508 Stanton Harcourt Industrial Estate Stanton 

Harcourt 

Burys Dryanstore Ltd 

 

 

11.  23/03098/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Single storey front, side and rear extension, removal of existing garage and outbuildings and 

proposed single storey outbuilding to provide ancillary accommodation to the main house. 

Installation of external wall insulation and render to the existing house, alterations to provide 

wider access onto the existing drive 

29 Old Witney Road Eynsham Witney 

Mr & Mrs Whyntie 

 

 

Page 45



DELGAT 
 

12.  23/03129/FUL Witney West APP 

  

Erection of eight drive-up storage units, alterations to the existing parking and turning area, 

and associated works (part retrospective) (amended description) 

Mystore Self Storage  Book End Witney 

Mr Charles Schmidt 

 

 

13.  23/03207/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Conversion of outbuilding into office and gymnasium. 

Mill Stream House Little Faringdon Mill Little Faringdon 

Mr Jeremy Duckworth 

 

 

14.  23/03244/HHD Ducklington APP 

  

Erection of two storey side and single storey wrap around extensions 

36 Manor Road Ducklington Witney 

Mr Mark Thornton 

 

 

15.  23/03294/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials) and 4 (surface water drainage scheme) of 

Planning Permission 23/00513/FUL 

Pavilion The Wickets Langford 

Mr Thomas Stevens 

 

 

16.  23/03288/HHD Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to include insertion of two new roof lights to South roof slope, replacement of 

existing roof lights on North elevation and insertion of folding doors to front elevation. 

Croftdown  34 Corn Street Witney 

Mr N Goodway 

 

 

17.  23/03289/LBC Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include changes to floor layouts, insertion of two new roof 

lights to South roof slope and replacement and alterations of existing roof lights on North 

elevation, changes to conservatory French doors and installation of folding doors to front 

elevation, along with removal of ramps. Internal alterations to include changes to first and 

second floor bathrooms, removal of gas fires and re-opening of fireplaces to second floor. 

Exterior works to include re-pointing and masonry repairs to elevations. 

Croftdown  34 Corn Street Witney 

Mr N Goodway 

 

 

Page 46



DELGAT 
 

18.  23/03299/HHD North Leigh APP 

  

Erection of a single storey rear and two storey rear and side extensions 

Belclose Cottage Witney Road North Leigh 

Mr And Mrs Iain And Maria McLachlan 

 

 

19.  23/03302/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton REF 

  

Conversion of existing stable to a two bedroom dwelling 

Roebuck Stables 7 Sturt Farm Courtyard Oxford Road 

Mr Fitzsimmons 

 

 

20.  23/03310/CLP Alvescot and Filkins WDN 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (erection of a single storey outbuilding) 

Dovecote House Little Faringdon Lechlade 

AW And PY Sumner And Rushton 

 

 

21.  23/03313/S73 Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Variation of conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission 19/00430/OUT to allow changes to the 

yurts, shower block and extended dining cabin. 

Windmill Farm Conference Centre Main Street Clanfield 

Mr Jon Cox 

 

 

22.  23/03344/S73 Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Variation of conditions 2 and 3 of permission 21/00063/FUL to allow changes to roof height, 

omittion of a roof light and relocation of a ground floor window and change doors and 

windscreen from UPVC to Antracite Grey Aluminium frames. 

Elderbank Hall Station Road Brize Norton 

Brize Norton Parish Council 

 

 

23.  23/03350/HHD Witney North APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of boundary fencing adjacent to highway (Retrospective) 

47 Bridge Street Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Chris Hurst 

 

 

24.  23/03384/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (surface water drainage scheme) of Planning Permission 

23/01280/HHD 

Home Farm House Radcot Road Grafton 

Mrs Emma Kirby 

 

 

Page 47



DELGAT 
 

25.  24/00004/CND Witney West REF 

  

Discharge of condition 11 (emergency access details) of planning permission 23/00469/FUL. 

Abbott Diabetes Care Range Road Windrush Industrial Park 

Abbott Diabetes Care Ltd 

 

 

26.  24/00034/HHD Carterton North West APP 

  

Single Storey Rear Extension 

112 Glenmore Road Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs Greenough 

 

 

27.  24/00087/HHD North Leigh APP 

  

Extend pitched roof over existing garage. 

36 Perrott Close North Leigh Witney 

Mrs Michelle Hookway 

 

 

28.  24/00008/HHD Ducklington APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension and construction of pitched roof over existing ground 

floor utility and wc. 

54 Witney Road Ducklington Witney 

Mr Daniel Mittell 

 

 

29.  24/00010/LBC Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Internal alterations and remedial works to include alterations to existing stair case and 

balustrade, the addition of an internal non structural wall in the boot room, replacement 

wooden lintels above two fire places and replacement of all modern doors. External works to 

include lime pointing to replace the cementitious mortars. 

Hulse Grounds Farm Little Faringdon Lechlade 

Mr George Lawson 

 

 

30.  24/00014/S73 North Leigh APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 22/00028/FUL to allow for the following 

changes: 1. Proposed site plan updated to show alteration to site entrance; minor changes to 

the location of the pool and pool house; minor change to the position of parking spaces; 

reduction in levels of area east of the terrace; location of ASHP 2. Window shown in what 

was 'blind' opening on north elevation 3. A/C unit alongside approved garage. 4. Alteration to 

pool house design and pool section 5. Changes to landscape proposal within the domestic 

curtilage. 

Woodlands House Wilcote Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs S Cook 

 

 

Page 48



DELGAT 
 

31.  24/00033/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Erection of detached double garage with office above. 

1 Foxwood Lane Bradwell Grove Burford 

Mr Clive Henry 

 

 

32.  24/00036/S73 Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 and removal of condition 3 of planning permission 23/00867/HHD to 

allow the addition of solar panels and changes to doors, fenestration (North elevation) and 

rooflights (East elevation) together with the confirmation of materials to be used. 

Rose Barn Main Road Alvescot 

Mr And Mrs Ken Lockwood 

 

 

33.  24/00045/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension, open front entrance porch and raising of existing flat 

roof, 3no. rear dormer windows, rooflight to front elevation, partial re-cladding of front 

elevation, alterations to windows and removal of chimney (amended). 

Silver Birches Yarnton Road Cassington 

Mr And Mrs D Henman 

 

 

34.  24/00046/PN56 Ducklington P2NRQ 

  

Installation and operation of a Solar roof mount measuring 115kWp, together with all 

associated works, equipment, and necessary infrastructure. 

Witney Lakes Golf Centre  Downs Road Witney 

Mr Mark Warne 

 

 

35.  24/00047/S73 Ducklington APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 23/02475/HHD to allow a flat roof dormer in 

place of a roof light. 

23 Beanhill Road Ducklington Witney 

Mr Rory Wootton 

 

 

36.  24/00069/HHD Carterton South APP 

  

Erection of rear single storey extension 

25 Oakfield Road Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mrs andrew self 

 

 

Page 49



DELGAT 
 

37.  24/00097/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Installation of underground LPG tank. 

1 Glissard Way Bradwell Village Burford 

Abdulaziz Ali 

 

 

38.  24/00098/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey side and rear extensions, front porch and proposed loft conversion 

requiring 3no rooflights and new side elevation window (amended) 

Indigo Cottage 2 Pinnocks Piece Kencot 

Polly Webster 

 

 

39.  24/00106/PN56 Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

P3APP 

  

Conversion of existing agricultural building into dwelling house. 

Burycroft Farm  Crawley Road Witney 

Mrs K Powell 

 

 

40.  24/00120/CLP Ducklington REF 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (demolition of existing sunroom and construction of single storey 

rear extension together with associated works). 

6 Manor Road Ducklington Witney 

Mrs Juliette Griffiths 

 

 

41.  24/00121/CLP Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (Erection of a single storey rear extension) 

9 Mount Owen Road Bampton Oxfordshire 

Mrs Fiona Self 

 

 

42.  24/00123/LBC Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of Secondary Glazing to all Windows (dwellings 2-12 Station Lane) 

2 Station Lane Witney Oxfordshire 

Witney Town Charity 

 

 

Page 50



DELGAT 
 

43.  24/00138/PN42 Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

P2NRQ 

  

Erection of a rear conservatory (4.5 x 4) 

35 Manor Crescent Standlake Witney 

Mr & Mrs Hutson 

 

 

44.  24/00153/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension 

92 High Street Standlake Witney 

Mr and Mrs Dalton 

 

 

45.  24/00158/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Erection of garden building 

Myrtle Cottage 60 Rack End Standlake 

Mr Mark Wallbutton 

 

 

46.  24/00171/CND Witney West APP 

  

Discharge of condition 12 (detailed surface water drainage scheme) of Planning Permission 

23/00469/FUL 

Abbott Diabetes Care Range Road Windrush Industrial Park 

c/o Agent 

 

 

47.  24/00173/HHD Witney East APP 

  

Removal of existing timber structure on side elevation. Erection of a single storey side 

extension. 

Kingsmead  51 Woodlands Road Witney 

Mr Gill 

 

 

48.  24/00174/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of replacement single storey rear extension and front porch, along with construction 

of a single storey side extension and conversion of existing outbuilding to create additional 

living space. Works to include replacement of windows and doors, re-roofing of main dwelling 

and installation of PV panels to rear roof slope 

Hawthorn House Hawthorn Road Eynsham 

Linda And Richard Whaley And Dean 

 

 

Page 51



DELGAT 
 

49.  24/00189/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Upgrade glazing to the courtyard elevations of the main building. 

Lower Farm Yard Langford Lechlade 

Mr Blake Shorthouse 

 

 

50.  24/00192/HHD Witney Central APP 

  

Insertion of a door and window to existing garage 

50 Heron Drive Witney Oxfordshire 

Stephen Hodge 

 

 

51.  24/00198/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Erection of orangery and replacement porch 

Stow Cottage 69 Station Road South Leigh 

Mr Oliver Jackson 

 

 

52.  24/00240/CND Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 5 (access between the land and the highway) and 6 (details of the 

proposed bridging/culverting) of Planning Permission 23/02738/HHD 

Jasmine Cottage Old Minster Lovell Minster Lovell 

Mr David Stubbs 

 

 

53.  24/00334/CND Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Discharge of condition 18 (CEMP-B) of planning permission 22/03370/FUL. 

Land West Of Colt House Aston Road Bampton 

Blue Cedar Homes Ltd 

 

 

54.  24/00352/NMA Witney North APP 

  

Proposed extension of rear dormer and addition of rooflight with associated works (non-

material amendment to allow Juliet balcony in place of  window). 

13 Wessex Court  Crawley Road Witney 

Dr Jeffery-Timlin 

 

 

Page 52



DELGAT 
 

55.  24/00381/CND Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials), 4 (desk study), 5 (Remediation Scheme), 7 

(details of bird boxes) and 16 (full surface water drainage scheme) of Planning Permission 

23/02731/FUL 

The Coffee Shed The Leys Witney 

Mr Jeff Hunter 

 

 

56.  24/00505/PDET28 Eynsham and Cassington P2NRQ 

  

Erection of a replacement agricultural storage building 

Foxley Farm Stanton Harcourt Road Eynsham 

Mrs R Peros 

 

 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Lowlands Appeal Decisions 

 

APP/D3125/D/23/3334535 

23/02382/HHD Rosehill, Green Lane, North Leigh, Oxfordshire OX29 6TW 

Single storey rear extension, new raised oversailing roof with roof accommodation and associated 

works 

Dismissed  

 

APP/D3125/W/23/3328176 

22/03327/FUL Singe Wood Stables, Lane To Singe Wood, WHITE OAK GREEN, HAILEY, OXFORDSHIRE, 

OX29 9XP 

The development proposed is the conversion of stables into two bedroom living accommodation for 

letting purposes 

Dismissed 

 

APP/D3125/W/23/3317638 

22/02626/FUL Hill Barn, The Hill, Shilton, Oxfordshire OX18 4AG  

The development proposed is closure of existing vehicular access and provision of a new driveway 

access and associated works. 

Dismissed 

 

APP/D3125/W/23/3315582 

22/01153/FUL Fish Hill Farm, Wilcote Road, North Leigh, Witney, Oxfordshire OX29 6WT 

The development proposed is described as conversion of existing barn on small holding, currently 

used to raise goats, to boarding kennels for dogs. 

 

You can click on the appeal number to view the Inspectors decision 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3334535&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3328176&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3317638&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3315582&CoID=0


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers.
	6 Appeal Decisions

